
Board of Commissioners 
606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 

Roseau, MN 56751 
Phone:  218-463-4248 

Fax:  218-463-3252

County Coordinator’s Office e-mail address: annmarie.miller@co.roseau.mn.us, Roseau County Home Page Address:  http://www.co.roseau.mn.us/ 

District 1, Glenda Phillipe, Vice-Chair - District 2, Jack Swanson  
District 3, Roger Falk - District 4, Russell Walker - District 5, Mark Foldesi, Chair 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Board of Commissioners of Roseau County will meet in session on May 23, 2017, at 9:00 a.m., in the 
Roseau County Courthouse, Room 110, Roseau, MN, at which time the following matters will come before the Board: 

9:00 Call to Order 
1. Presentation of Colors
2. Approve Agenda
3. Comments and Announcements
4. Approve Bills

9:05 Delegations/Board Appointments/Public Comments 

9:10 Consent Agenda 
1. May 9, 2017 Board Proceedings
2. Social Worker Hire
3. MCCC Joint Powers Agreement
4. Master Partnership Contract - MnDOT

9:15 Department Reports 

9:15 County Board Items  
1. Commissioner Committee Reports

10:00 Unfinished Business 

10:00 Adjourn 

*Limited to five minutes

mailto:annmarie.miller@co.roseau.mn.us
http://co.roseau.mn.us/


Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 1 
(for office use only)

Requested Board Date: May 9, 2017 Originating Department:  Coordinator’s Office 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
May 23, 2017 Board Proceedings 

Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Review and approve the May 9, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Proceedings. 

Background: 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations ☒ Consent Agenda

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 
Board Action: 

Approved as Requested:  
Denied:   
Tabled:   
Other:   

Distribution/Filing Instructions:  



 

PROCEEDINGS OF THE ROSEAU COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

May 9, 2017 
 

The Board of Commissioners of Roseau County, Minnesota met in the Courthouse in the 
City of Roseau, Minnesota on Tuesday, May 9, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.  
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
 The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m. by Board Chair Mark Foldesi. The Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. Commissioners present were Roger Falk, Mark Foldesi, Glenda Phillipe, 
Jack Swanson and Russell Walker.  Others present were Ann Marie Miller, Martha Monsrud, Jeff 
Pelowski, Brian Ketring, Scott Johnson, and Maria Pahlen. 

 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
  

The Consent Agenda item regarding the One Watershed One Plan committee appointments 
was moved to County Board items and a buffer strip discussion was added to the Soil and Water 
Conservation District appointment.  A motion to approve the amended Agenda was made by 
Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner Walker and carried unanimously. 
 
COMMENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
  Commissioner Swanson distributed a list of State-owned parcels the County has requested 
the DNR sell to the public.  In addition, Commissioner Swanson distributed Beltrami County ditch 
abandonment information.   
 

Auditor Monsrud reported that all parcels were sold at the County Land Sale held on May 8, 
2017.  A motion to authorize a title search, necessary to execute warranty deeds on the properties 
that were sold, was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner Falk and carried 
unanimously.   

 
Commissioner Falk thanked those who testified in his recent trial.   
 
Treatment Court Coordinator Maria Pahlen reminded the Board of the Drug Court Open 

House to be held on May 23, 2017 at 2:45 p.m. 
 
APPROVE BILLS 

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Falk, seconded by Commissioner Walker and carried 

unanimously to approve the payment of the following bills: 
 

Warrants Approved For Payment 5/04/2017 
 Vendor Name  Amount 
 DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE 3,031.77 
 JOHNSON/LAURE A 3,526.88 
 LIFECARE MEDICAL CENTER 36,303.20 
 NW MN SERV COOP-BLUE CROSS BLUE 95,870.00 
 ROSEAU/LOW SPORTSMAN CLUB 4,053.00 
 13 Payments less than 2,000.00  8,365.44 

Final Total:  151,150.29 
 

Warrants Approved On 5/09/2017 For Payment 5/12/2017 



 

 Vendor Name  Amount 
 ANDREW J STOSKOPF TRUCKING INC  11,098.94 
 AUTO VALUE OF ROSEAU  3,851.96 
 AVIANDS LLC  8,936.88 
 BALLARD MOTOR CO  2,298.90 
 ERICKSON ENGINEERING CO., LLC 2,444.00 
 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL  2,594.64 
 KRIS ENGINEERING INC  8,186.01 
 MAR-KIT LANDFILL  38,769.50 
 NORTHERN RESOURCES COOPERATIVE  2,655.61 
 NORTRAX EQUIPMENT CO  312,664.00 
 POWERPHONE INC  9,094.00 
 ROSEAU CO COOP ASSN  2,292.51 
 TRUE NORTH STEEL  40,814.82 
 67 Payments less than 2,000.00  22,499.79 

Final Total:  468,201.56 
 
In addition, the Board approved forthwith payments to:  Northwest Concrete, Inc., in the 

amount of $2,250.00, for brushing in Norland Township; Randy Erickson, in the amount of 
$1,300.00, for beaver removal on Ditch 17; Eric Pederson, in the amount of $250.00, for beaver 
removal in Mickinock Township; and Lyle Roseen, in the amount of $900.00, for beaver removal in 
Falun Township. 
 
DELEGATIONS/BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
Scott Johnson, SWCD – Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Program Update 
 Mr. Johnson met with the Board to provide an update on the County’s AIS program and also 
reviewed plans to implement the State Buffer Strip Initiative.  Following discussion, the Board, by 
consensus, requested Mr. Johnson research bait exchange options for the County’s AIS program. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
A motion to approve the Consent Agenda was made by Commissioner Walker, seconded by 

Commissioner Falk and carried unanimously.  The Board, by adoption of its Consent Agenda, 
approved the April 25, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Proceedings; approved the Roseau/Lake of the 
Woods Sportsman’s Club FY2017 Grant Agreement and Resolution of Support (2017-05-02); 
approved the Roseau County Trailblazers FY2017 Grant application and Resolution of Support 
(2017-05-01); approved the Roseau County Trailblazers 4th Benchmark; approved the 
advertisement for hire of a temporary Victim Services Advocate; and, approved a final payment to 
Knife River Materials, in the amount of $56,759.91. 
 
COUNTY BOARD ITEMS    
 
Lake of the Woods One Watershed One Plan (1W1P) Committee Appointments 
 Commissioner Walker requested the Board consider Phil Kotta for appointment to the LOW 
1W1P Planning Committee.  It was suggested that Mr. Kotta could apply for a position on the 
Advisory Committee.  A motion to appoint Commissioner Philippe and Todd Miller to the LOW 
1W1P Planning Committee was made by Commissioner Swanson, seconded by Commissioner 
Phillipe and carried by a 3-1 vote, (Commissioners Swanson, Phillipe and Foldesi in favor, 
Commissioner Falk opposed, while Commissioner Walker abstained). 
 
Commissioner Committee Reports 
 



 

 Commissioner Falk reported on the following committee(s):  County Ditch 6 meeting with 
Kurt Dieter, 4/17/17; Social Services Board, 4/18/17; Highway Committee, 4/18/17; Northwest 
Community Action (NWCA) Board, 4/20/17; NWCA Hiring Committee meeting, 4/26/17; Buffer Strip 
meeting, 4/27/17; Operations/Committee of the Whole meetings, 5/2/17; Roseau River Watershed 
District, 5/3/17. 
 

Commissioner Phillipe reported on the following committee(s):  Warroad Parks and 
Recreation, 4/27/17; Operations/Committee of the Whole meetings, 5/2/17; Land of the Dancing 
Sky Area Agency on Aging, 5/3/17; Warroad City Council, 5/8/17. 
 
 Commissioner Swanson reported on the following committee(s):  Roseau Economic 
Development Authority, 4/26/17; Roseau City Council, 5/1/17; Operations/Committee of the Whole 
meetings, 5/2/17; Community Justice Coordinating Committee, 5/3/17; Northern Counties Land Use 
Coordinating Committee, 5/4/17. 
 
 Commissioner Walker reported on the following committee (s):  Mickinock Township Board, 
4/11/17; County Ditch 6 meeting with Kurt Dieter, 4/17/17; Social Services Board, 4/18/17; Highway 
Committee, 4/18/17; Federal Trappers meeting, 4/22/17; Buffer Strip meeting, 4/27/17; 
Operations/Committee of the Whole meetings, 5/2/17; Roseau River Watershed District, 5/3/17; 
Minnesota Rural Counties, 5/8/17; Soil and Water Conservation District, 5/9/17. 
 
 Upon motion carried, the Board adjourned the regular meeting at 11:00 a.m.  The next 
regular meeting of the Board is scheduled for May 23, 2017 at 9:00 a.m.  
 
Attest: Date:   
 
    
Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator Mark Foldesi, Chair 
Roseau County, Minnesota  Board of County Commissioners 
 Roseau County, Minnesota 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 2 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 23, 2017 Originating Department:  Social Services 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Social Worker Hire 

Presenter:  Dave Anderson 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Consider approving the hire of Krista Friesner, Social Worker, effective June 5, 2017. This position is regular full-
time, Grade 7, Step A. 
 

Background: 
The Social Service Board is recommending Krista Friesner be hired to replace Carole Grindy who is retiring from 
the agency. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☐ Attached ☒ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 3 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 23, 2017 Originating Department:  Auditor 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
MCCC Joint Powers Agreement 

Presenter:  Martie Monsrud 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 
☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 
☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Requesting the Board authorize a Joint Powers Agreement between Roseau County and the Minnesota Counties 
Computer Cooperative (MCCC).    
 

Background: 
Roseau County has been a member of MCCC since 1984.     
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 
☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



















Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   Consent 4 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 23, 2017 Originating Department:  Highway 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Master Partnership Contract – MnDOT  

Presenter:  Brian Ketring 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☒< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☐ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 
Board Action Requested: 
Consider approval of the attached Master Partnership Contract (MnDOT Agreement No. 1028315). 
 

Background: 
      
 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☒ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☐ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



 
  
  State Aid for Local Transportation 

395 John Ireland Blvd., MS 500 
St. Paul, MN 55155 

 

Date: May 18, 2017 

To:  Brian Ketring 
      Roseau County Engineer 
      407 5th Avenue NW 
      Roseau, MN 56751 
 
RE: Proposed Master Partnership Contract  

Attached is a copy of a proposed master partnership contract between the Minnesota Department of 
Transportation (Mn/DOT) and Roseau County.  

The Master Partnership Contract provides a framework for MnDOT and Local Agencies to provide 
services and payment to each other.  A few MnDOT provided routine services are included in the 
contract—see Exhibit A-- but all other services require work orders describing costs and scope.    

Kindly review the enclosed document and if acceptable, arrange to have it presented to your Board for 
their approval and execution. Please provide signatures only under the Roseau County heading.  

Also required is a new resolution passed by the Board authorizing its officials to sign and execute the 
agreement on its behalf. (Only the named officials may sign the agreement: if anyone else signs in the 
named official’s place, the agreement will not be executed.)  

Please return to me at the address listed above or as a pdf to olga.kruglova@state.mn.us.  Please note 
that no work shall be performed by MnDOT personnel until the full execution of the agreement.  After 
execution by MnDOT and other State officials, a copy of the agreement will be returned to you.  

If you have any questions or require additional information, please feel free to contact me at 651-366-
3806.  If your local agency will not be executing this contract, please send me an email informing me of 
this so I can remove you from our list.   

 

Thank you 

 

Olga Kruglova                   
Transportation Program Specialist 
MnDOT State Aid Office 
olga.kruglova@state.mn.us 

CC: Lou Tasa  



 
Board of Commissioners 

606 5th Ave. SW, Room #131 
Roseau, MN 56751 

Phone:  218-463-4248 
Fax:  218-463-3252 

 

District 1, Glenda Phillipe, Vice-Chair, District 2, Jack Swanson  
District 3, Mark Foldesi, Chair - District 4, Russell Walker - District 5, Mark Foldesi, Chair` 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

A motion was made by Commissioner XXXXX, seconded by Commissioner XXXXX and 
carried unanimously to adopt the following Resolution: 
 
2017-05-03 
 

Whereas, The Minnesota Department of Transportation (MnDOT) wishes to 
cooperate closely with local units of government to coordinate the delivery of 
transportation services and maximize the efficient delivery of such services at all levels 
of government; and 
 

Whereas, MnDOT and local governments are authorized by Minnesota Statutes 
sections 471.59, 174.02, and 161.20, to undertake collaborative efforts for the design, 
construction, maintenance and operation of state and local roads; and 
 

Whereas, the parties wish to be able to respond quickly and efficiently to such 
opportunities for collaboration, and have determined that having the ability to write “work 
orders” against a master contract would provide the greatest speed and flexibility in 
responding to identified needs. 
 

Therefore, be it resolved:   
 

1. That Roseau County enter into a Master Partnership Contract with MnDOT, a 
copy of which was before the Board. 

 
2. That the proper County officers are authorized to execute such contract, and any 

amendments thereto. 
 

3. That the Roseau County Engineer is authorized to negotiate work order contracts 
pursuant to the Master Contract, which work order contracts may provide for 
payment to or from MnDOT, and that the County Engineer may execute such 
work order contracts on behalf of Roseau County without further approval by this 
Board. 

 
STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
    )  ss 
COUNTY OF ROSEAU      ) 
 
 I, Jeff Pelowski, County Coordinator in and for Roseau County, Minnesota, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a part of the proceedings adopted by the Roseau County 
Board of Commissioners on May 23, 2017. 
 
 (SEAL)      ____________________________ 
       Jeff Pelowski 
       County Coordinator 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 1 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 

AND 

ROSEAU  COUNTY 

MASTER PARTNERSHIP CONTRACT 

 

This master contract is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Transportation in this contract 
referred to as the “State” and the ROSEAU County acting through its County Board , in this contract referred to as the 
“Local Government." 

Recitals 

1. The parties are authorized to enter into this contract pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, §§15.061, 471.59 and 174.02.  

2. Minn. Stat. § 161.20, subd. 2, authorizes the Commissioner of Transportation to make arrangements with and 
cooperate with any governmental authority for the purposes of constructing, maintaining and improving the trunk 
highway system.  

3. Each party to this contract is a “road authority” as defined by Minn. Stat. §160.02, subd. 25. 

4. Minn. Stat. § 161.39, subd. 1, authorizes a road authority to perform work for another road authority. Such work 
may include providing technical and engineering advice, assistance and supervision, surveying, preparing plans 
for the construction or reconstruction of roadways, and performing roadway maintenance.  

5. Minn. Stat. §174.02, subd. 6, authorizes the Commissioner of Transportation to enter into contracts with other 
governmental entities for research and experimentation; for sharing facilities, equipment, staff, data, or other 
means of providing transportation-related services; or for other cooperative programs that promote efficiencies in 
providing governmental services, or that further development of innovation in transportation for the benefit of the 
citizens of Minnesota.  

6. Each party wishes to occasionally purchase services from the other party, which the parties agree will enhance the 
efficiency of delivering governmental services at all levels. This Master Partnership Contract (MPC) provides a 
framework for the efficient handling of such requests. This MPC contains terms generally governing the 
relationship between the parties. When specific services are requested, the parties will (unless otherwise specified) 
enter into a “Work Order” contracts. 

7. After the execution of this MPC, the parties may (but are not required to) enter into “Work Order” contracts. 
These Work Orders will specify the work to be done, timelines for completion, and compensation to be paid for 
the specific work. 

8. The parties are entering into this MPC to establish terms that will govern all of the Work Orders subsequently 
issued under the authority of this Contract. 

 

Master Partnership Contract 

1. Term of Master Partnership Contract; Use of Work Order Contracts; Survival of Terms 

1.1. Effective Date: This contract will be effective on the date last signed by the Local Government, and all 
State officials as required under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 2.  

1.2. A party must not accept work under this Contract until it is fully executed.  

1.3. Expiration Date. This Contract will expire on June 30, 2022. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 2 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

1.4. Work Order Contracts. A work order contract must be negotiated and executed (by both the State and the 
Local Government) for each particular engagement, except for Technical Services provided by the State 
to the Local Government as specified in Article 2. The work order contract must specify the detailed 
scope of work and deliverables for that project. A party must not begin work under a work order until the 
work order is fully executed. The terms of this MPC will apply to all work orders contracts issued, unless 
specifically varied in the work order. The Local Government understands that this MPC is not a guarantee 
of any payments or work order assignments, and that payments will only be issued for work actually 
performed under fully-executed work orders.  

1.5. Survival of Terms. The following clauses survive the expiration or cancellation of this master contract 
and all work order contracts: 12. Liability; 13. State Audits; 14. Government Data Practices and 
Intellectual Property; 17. Publicity; 18. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; and 22. Data Disclosure. 
All terms of this MPC will survive with respect to any work order contract issued prior to the expiration 
date of the MPC.  

1.6. Sample Work Order. A sample work order contract is available upon request from the State. 

1.7. Definition of “Providing Party” and “Requesting Party”. For the purpose of assigning certain duties and 
obligations in the MPC to work order contracts, the following definitions will apply throughout the MPC. 
“Requesting Party” is defined as the party requesting the other party to perform work under a work order 
contract. “Providing Party” is defined as the party performing the scope of work under a work order 
contract. 

2. Technical Services 

2.1. Technical Services include repetitive low-cost services routinely performed by the State for the Local 
Government. These services may be performed by the State for the Local Government without the 
execution of a work order, as these services are provided in accordance with standardized practices and 
processes and do not require a detailed scope of work. Exhibit A – Table of Technical Services is 
attached.  

2.1.1. Every other service not falling under the services listed in Exhibit A will require a work order 
contract. 

2.2. The Local Government may request the State to perform Technical Services in an informal manner, such 
as by the use of email, a purchase order, or by delivering materials to a State lab and requesting testing. A 
request may be made via telephone, but will not be considered accepted unless acknowledged in writing 
by the State.  

2.3. The State will promptly inform the Local Government if the State will be unable to perform the requested 
Technical Services. Otherwise, the State will perform the Technical Services in accordance with the 
State’s normal processes and practices, including scheduling practices taking into account the availability 
of State staff and equipment.  

2.4. Payment Basis. Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties prior to performance of the services, the State 
will charge the Local Government the State’s then-current rate for performing the Technical Services. 
The then-current rate may include the State’s normal and customary additives. The State will invoice the 
Local Government upon completion of the services, or at regular intervals not more than once monthly as 
agreed upon by the parties. The invoice will provide a summary of the Technical Services provided by the 
State during the invoice period. 

3. Services Requiring A Work Order Contract 

3.1. Work Order Contracts: A party may request the other party to perform any of the following services 
under individual work order contracts.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 3 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

3.2. Professional and Technical Services. A party may provide professional and technical services upon the 
request of the other party. As defined by Minn. Stat. §16C.08, subd. 1, professional/technical services 
“means services that are intellectual in character, including consultation, analysis, evaluation, prediction, 
planning, programming, or recommendation; and result in the production of a report or completion of a 
task.” Professional and technical services do not include providing supplies or materials except as 
incidental to performing such services. Professional and technical services include (by way of example 
and without limitation) engineering services, surveying, foundation recommendations and reports, 
environmental documentation, right-of-way assistance (such as performing appraisals or providing 
relocation assistance, but excluding the exercise of the power of eminent domain), geometric layouts, 
final construction plans, graphic presentations, public relations, and facilitating open houses. A party will 
normally provide such services with its own personnel; however, a party’s professional/technical services 
may also include hiring and managing outside consultants to perform work provided that a party itself 
provides active project management for the use of such outside consultants. 

3.3. Roadway Maintenance. A party may provide roadway maintenance upon the request of the other party. 
Roadway maintenance does not include roadway reconstruction. This work may include but is not limited 
to snow removal, ditch spraying, roadside mowing, bituminous mill and overlay (only small projects), 
seal coat, bridge hits, major retaining wall failures, major drainage failures, and message painting. All 
services must be performed by an employee with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to 
perform such work, and work must be supervised by a qualified employee of the party performing the 
work.  

3.4. Construction Administration. A party may administer roadway construction projects upon the request of 
the other party. Roadway construction includes (by way of example and without limitation) the 
construction, reconstruction, or rehabilitation of mainline, shoulder, median, pedestrian or bicycle 
pathway, lighting and signal systems, pavement mill and overlays, seal coating, guardrail installation, and 
channelization. These services may be performed by the Providing Party’s own forces, or the Providing 
Party may administer outside contracts for such work. Construction administration may include letting 
and awarding construction contracts for such work (including state projects to be completed in 
conjunction with local projects). All contract administration services must be performed by an employee 
with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to perform such work. 

3.5. Emergency Services. A party may provide aid upon request of the other party in the event of a man-made 
disaster, natural disaster or other act of God. Emergency services includes all those services as the parties 
mutually agree are necessary to plan for, prepare for, deal with, and recover from emergency situations. 
These services include, without limitation, planning, engineering, construction, maintenance, and removal 
and disposal services related to things such as road closures, traffic control, debris removal, flood 
protection and mitigation, sign repair, sandbag activities and general cleanup. Work will be performed by 
an employee with sufficient skills, training, expertise or certification to perform such work, and work 
must be supervised by a qualified employee of the party performing the work. If it is not feasible to have 
an executed work order prior to performance of the work, the parties will promptly confer to determine 
whether work may be commenced without a fully-executed work order in place. If work commences 
without a fully-executed work order, the parties will follow up with execution of a work order as soon as 
feasible. 

3.6. When a need is identified, the State and the Local Government will discuss the proposed work and the 
resources needed to perform the work. If a party desires to perform such work, the parties will negotiate 
the specific and detailed work tasks and cost. The State will then prepare a work order contract. 
Generally, a work order contract will be limited to one specific project/engagement, although “on call” 
work orders may be prepared for certain types of services, especially for “Technical Services” items as 
identified section 2.1.. The work order will also identify specific deliverables required, and timeframes for 
completing work. A work order must be fully executed by the parties prior to work being commenced. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 4 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

The Local Government will not be paid for work performed prior to execution of a work order contract 
and authorization by the State. 

4. Responsibilities of the Providing Party 

 

4.1. Terms Applicable to ALL Work Order Contracts. The terms in this section 4.1 will apply to ALL work 
order contracts. 

4.1.1. Each work order will identify an Authorized Representative for each party. Each party’s 
authorized representative is responsible for administering the work order, and has the authority to 
make any decisions regarding the work, and to give and receive any notices required or permitted 
under this MPC or the work order. 

4.1.2. The Providing Party will furnish and assign a publicly employed licensed engineer (Project 
Engineer), to be in responsible charge of the project(s) and to supervise and direct the work to be 
performed under each work order contract. For services not requiring an engineer, the Providing 
Party will furnish and assign another responsible employee to be in charge of the project. The 
services of the Providing Party under a work order contract may not be otherwise assigned, 
sublet, or transferred unless approved in writing by the Requesting Party’s authorized 
representative. This written consent will in no way relieve the Providing Party from its primary 
responsibility for the work.  

4.1.3. If the Local Government is the Providing Party, the Project Engineer may request in writing 
specific engineering and/or technical services from the State, pursuant to Minn. Stat. Section 
161.39. The work order Contract will require the Local Government to deposit payment in 
advance. The costs and expenses will include the current State additives and overhead rates, 
subject to adjustment based on actual direct costs that have been verified by audit. 

4.1.4. Only the receipt of a fully executed work order contract authorizes the Providing Party to begin 
work on a project. Any and all effort, expenses, or actions taken by the Providing Party before the 
work order contract is fully executed are considered unauthorized and undertaken at the risk of 
non-payment. 

4.1.5. In connection with the performance of this contract and any work orders issued, the Providing 
Agency will comply with all applicable Federal and State laws and regulations. When the 
Providing Party is authorized or permitted to award contracts in connection with any work order, 
the Providing Party will require and cause its contractors and subcontractors to comply with all 
Federal and State laws and regulations. 

4.2. Additional Terms for Roadway Maintenance. The terms of section 4.1 and this section 4.2 will apply to 
all work orders for Roadway Maintenance. 

4.2.1. Unless otherwise provided for by contract or work order, the Providing Party must obtain all 
permits and sanctions that may be required for the proper and lawful performance of the work. 

4.2.2. The Providing Party must perform maintenance in accordance with MnDOT maintenance 
manuals, policies and operations. 

4.2.3. The Providing Party must use State-approved materials, including (by way of example and without 
limitation), sign posts, sign sheeting, and de-icing and anti-icing chemicals. 

4.3. Additional Terms for Construction Administration. The terms of section 4.1 and this section 4.3 will 
apply to all work order contracts for construction administration. 

4.3.1. Contract(s) must be awarded to the lowest responsible bidder or best value proposer in 
accordance with state law. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 5 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

4.3.2. Contractor(s) must be required to post payment and performance bonds in an amount equal to the 
contract amount. The Providing Party will take all necessary action to make claims against such 
bonds in the event of any default by the contractor. 

4.3.3. Contractor(s) must be required to perform work in accordance with the latest edition of the 
Minnesota Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Construction. 

4.3.4. For work performed on State right-of-way, contractor(s) must be required to indemnify and hold 
the State harmless against any loss incurred with respect to the performance of the contracted 
work, and must be required to provide evidence of insurance coverage commensurate with project 
risk. 

4.3.5. Contractor(s) must pay prevailing wages pursuant to applicable state and federal law. 

4.3.6. Contractor(s) must comply with all applicable Federal, and State laws, ordinances and 
regulations, including but not limited to applicable human rights/anti-discrimination laws and 
laws concerning the participation of Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in federally-assisted 
contracts. 

4.3.7. Unless otherwise agreed in a work order contract, each party will be responsible for providing 
rights of way, easement, and construction permits for its portion of the improvements. Each party 
will, upon the other’s request, furnish copies of right of way certificates, easements, and 
construction permits. 

4.3.8. The Providing Party may approve minor changes to the Requesting Party’s portion of the project 
work if such changes do not increase the Requesting Party’s cost obligation under the applicable 
work order contract. 

4.3.9. The Providing Party will not approve any contractor claims for additional compensation without 
the Requesting Party’s written approval, and the execution of a proper amendment to the 
applicable work order contract when necessary. The Local Government will tender the processing 
and defense of any such claims to the State upon the State’s request. 

4.3.10. The Local Government must coordinate all trunk highway work affecting any utilities with the 
State’s Utilities Office. 

4.3.11. The Providing Party must coordinate all necessary detours with the Requesting Party.  

4.3.12. If the Local Government is the Providing Party, and there is work performed on the trunk 
highway right-of-way, the following will apply: 

4.3.12.1 The Local Government will have a permit to perform the work on the trunk highway. 
The State may revoke this permit if the work is not being performed in a safe, proper 
and skillful manner, or if the contractor is violating the terms of any law, regulation, or 
permit applicable to the work. The State will have no liability to the Local Government, 
or its contractor, if work is suspended or stopped due to any such condition or concern. 

4.3.12.2 The Local Government will require its contractor to conduct all traffic control in 
accordance with the Minnesota Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

4.3.12.3 The Local Government will require its contractor to comply with the terms of all 
permits issued for the project including, but not limited to, National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) and other environmental permits. 

4.3.12.4 All improvements constructed on the State’s right-of-way will become the property of 
the State. 

5. Responsibilities of the Requesting Party 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 6 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

5.1. After authorizing the Providing Party to begin work, the Requesting Party will furnish any data or 
material in its possession relating to the project that may be of use to the Providing Party in performing 
the work. 

5.2. All such data furnished to the Providing Party will remain the property of the Requesting Party and will 
be promptly returned upon the Requesting Party’s request or upon the expiration or termination of this 
contract (subject to data retention requirements of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act and 
other applicable law). 

5.3. The Providing Party will analyze all such data furnished by the Requesting Party. If the Providing Party 
finds any such data to be incorrect or incomplete, the Providing Party will bring the facts to the attention 
of the Requesting Party before proceeding with the part of the project affected. The Providing Party will 
investigate the matter, and if it finds that such data is incorrect or incomplete, it will promptly determine a 
method for furnishing corrected data. Delay in furnishing data will not be considered justification for an 
adjustment in compensation. 

5.4. The State will provide to the Local Government copies of any Trunk Highway fund clauses to be included 
in the bid solicitation and will provide any required Trunk Highway fund provisions to be included in the 
Proposal for Highway Construction, that are different from those required for State Aid construction. 

5.5. The Requesting Party will perform final reviews and inspections of its portion of the project work. If the 
work is found to have been completed in accordance with the work order contract, the Requesting Party 
will promptly release any remaining funds due the Providing Party for the Project(s). 

5.6. The work order contracts may include additional responsibilities to be completed by the Requesting Party. 

6. Time 

In the performance of project work under a work order contract, time is of the essence. 

7. Consideration and Payment 

7.1. Consideration. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the work order. The 
State’s normal and customary additives will apply to work performed by the State, unless otherwise 
specified in the work order. The State’s normal and customary additives will not apply if the parties agree 
to a “lump sum” or “unit rate” payment. 

7.2. State’s Maximum Obligation. The total compensation to be paid by the State to the 
Local Government under all work order contracts issued pursuant to this MPC will not 
exceed $250,000.00. 

7.3. Travel Expenses. It is anticipated that all travel expenses will be included in the base cost of the 
Providing Party’s services, and unless otherwise specifically set forth in an applicable work order 
contract, the Providing Party will not be separately reimbursed for travel and subsistence expenses 
incurred by the Providing Party in performing any work order contract. In those cases where the State 
agrees to reimburse travel expenses, such expenses will be reimbursed in the same manner and in no 
greater amount than provided in the current "MnDOT Travel Regulations” a copy of which is on file with 
and available from the MnDOT District Office. The Local Government will not be reimbursed for travel 
and subsistence expenses incurred outside of Minnesota unless it has received the State’s prior written 
approval for such travel. 

7.4. Payment.  

7.4.1. Generally. The Requesting Party will pay the Providing Party as specified in the applicable work 
order, and will make prompt payment in accordance with Minnesota law. 

7.4.2. Payment by the Local Government.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 7 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

7.4.2.1. The Local Government will make payment to the order of the Commissioner of 
Transportation.  

7.4.2.2. IMPORTANT NOTE: PAYMENT MUST REFERENCE THE “MNDOT 
CONTRACT NUMBER” SHOWN ON THE FACE PAGE OF THIS CONTRACT 
AND THE “INVOICE NUMBER” ON THE INVOICE RECEIVED FROM 
MNDOT.  

7.4.2.3. Remit payment to the address below: 

MnDOT  
Attn: Cash Accounting  
RE: MnDOT Contract Number 1028315. 
Mail Stop 215 
395 John Ireland Blvd 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
 

7.4.3. Payment by the State. 

7.4.3.1. Generally. The State will promptly pay the Local Government after the Local 
Government presents an itemized invoice for the services actually performed and the 
State's Authorized Representative accepts the invoiced services. Invoices must be 
submitted as specified in the applicable work order, but no more frequently than monthly.  

7.4.3.2. Retainage for Professional and Technical Services. For work orders for professional and 
technical services, as required by Minn. Stat. § 16C.08, subd. 2(10), no more than 90 
percent of the amount due under any work order contract may be paid until the final 
product of the work order contract has been reviewed by the State’s authorized 
representative. The balance due will be paid when the State’s authorized representative 
determines that the Local Government has satisfactorily fulfilled all the terms of the work 
order contract.  

8. Conditions of Payment 

All work performed by the Providing Party under a work order contract must be performed to the Requesting 
Party’s satisfaction, as determined at the sole and reasonable discretion of the Requesting Party’s Authorized 
Representative and in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, rules, and regulations. The Providing 
Party will not receive payment for work found by the State to be unsatisfactory or performed in violation of 
federal or state law. 

9. Local Government’s Authorized Representative and Project Manager; Authority to Execute Work Order 
Contracts 

9.1. The Local Government’s Authorized Representative for administering this master contract is the Local 
Government’s Engineer, and the Engineer has the responsibility to monitor the Local Government’s 
performance. The Local Government’s Authorized Representative is also authorized to execute work 
order contracts on behalf of the Local Government without approval of each proposed work order 
contract by its governing body. 

9.2. The Local Government’s Project Manager will be identified in each work order contract.  

10. State’s Authorized Representative and Project Manager 

10.1. The State's Authorized Representative for this master contract is the District State Aid Engineer, who has 
the responsibility to monitor the State’s performance. 

10.2. The State’s Project Manager will be identified in each work order contract.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 8 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

11. Assignment, Amendments, Waiver, and Contract Complete 

11.1. Assignment. Neither party may assign or transfer any rights or obligations under this MPC or any work 
order contract without the prior consent of the other and a fully executed Assignment Contract, executed 
and approved by the same parties who executed and approved this MPC, or their successors in office. 

11.2. Amendments. Any amendment to this master contract or any work order contract must be in writing and 
will not be effective until it has been executed and approved by the same parties who executed and 
approved the original contract, or their successors in office. 

11.3. Waiver. If a party fails to enforce any provision of this master contract or any work order contract, that 
failure does not waive the provision or the party’s right to subsequently enforce it. 

11.4. Contract Complete. This master contract and any work order contract contain all negotiations and 
contracts between the State and the Local Government. No other understanding regarding this master 
contract or any work order contract issued hereunder, whether written or oral may be used to bind either 
party. 

12. Liability.  

Each party will be responsible for its own acts and omissions to the extent provided by law. The Local 
Government’s liability is governed by Minn. Stat. chapter 466 and other applicable law. The State’s liability is 
governed by Minn. Stat. section 3.736 and other applicable law. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal 
remedies a party may have for the other party’s failure to fulfill its obligations under this master contract or any 
work order contract. Neither party agrees to assume any environmental liability on behalf of the other party. A 
Providing Party under any work order is acting only as a “Contractor” to the Requesting Party, as the term 
“Contractor” is defined in Minn. Stat. §115B.03 (subd. 10), and is entitled to the protections afforded to a 
“Contractor” by the Minnesota Environmental Response and Liability Act. The parties specifically intend that 
Minn. Stat. §471.59 subd. 1a will apply to any work undertaken under this MPC and any work order issued 
hereunder. 

13. State Audits 

Under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5, the party’s books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and 
practices relevant to any work order contract are subject to examination by the parties and by the State Auditor or 
Legislative Auditor, as appropriate, for a minimum of six years from the end of this MPC. 

14. Government Data Practices and Intellectual Property  

14.1. Government Data Practices. The Local Government and State must comply with the Minnesota 
Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, as it applies to all data provided by the State under 
this MPC and any work order contract, and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, 
used, maintained, or disseminated by the Local Government under this MPC and any work order contract. 
The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08 apply to the release of the data referred to in this clause by 
either the Local Government or the State. 

14.2. Intellectual Property Rights 

14.2.1. Intellectual Property Rights. The Requesting Party will own all rights, title, and interest in all of 
the intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and 
service marks in the Works and Documents created and paid for under work order contracts. 
Works means all inventions, improvements, discoveries (whether or not patentable), databases, 
computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, 
specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or originated by 
the Providing Party, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with 
others in the performance of this master contract or any work order contract. Works includes 
“Documents.” Documents are the originals of any databases, computer programs, reports, notes, 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 9 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

studies, photographs, negatives, designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other 
materials, whether in tangible or electronic forms, prepared by the Providing Party, its employees, 
agents, or contractors, in the performance of a work order contract. The Documents will be the 
exclusive property of the Requesting Party and all such Documents must be immediately returned 
to the Requesting Party by the Providing Party upon completion or cancellation of the work order 
contract. To the extent possible, those Works eligible for copyright protection under the United 
States Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” The Providing Party 
Government assigns all right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to 
the Requesting Party. The Providing Party must, at the request of the Requesting Party, execute 
all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the Requesting Party’s 
ownership interest in the Works and Documents. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Requesting 
Party grants the Providing Party an irrevocable and royalty-free license to use such intellectual 
property for its own non-commercial purposes, including dissemination to political subdivisions 
of the state of Minnesota and to transportation-related agencies such as the American Association 
of State Highway and Transportation Officials. 

14.2.2. Obligations with Respect to Intellectual Property.  

14.2.2.1. Notification. Whenever any invention, improvement, or discovery (whether or not 
patentable) is made or conceived for the first time or actually or constructively reduced 
to practice by the Providing Party, including its employees and subcontractors, in the 
performance of the work order contract, the Providing Party will immediately give the 
Requesting Party’s Authorized Representative written notice thereof, and must 
promptly furnish the Authorized Representative with complete information and/or 
disclosure thereon. 

14.2.2.2. Representation. The Providing Party must perform all acts, and take all steps necessary 
to ensure that all intellectual property rights in the Works and Documents are the sole 
property of the Requesting Party, and that neither Providing Party nor its employees, 
agents or contractors retain any interest in and to the Works and Documents.  

15. Affirmative Action 

The State intends to carry out its responsibility for requiring affirmative action by its Contractors, pursuant to 
Minn. Stat. §363A.36. Pursuant to that Statute, the Local Government is encouraged to prepare and implement an 
affirmative action plan for the employment of minority persons, women, and the qualified disabled, and submit 
such plan to the Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. In addition, when the Local 
Government lets a contract for the performance of work under a work order issued pursuant to this MPC, it must 
include the following in the bid or proposal solicitation and any contracts awarded as a result thereof: 

15.1. Covered Contracts and Contractors. If the Contract exceeds $100,000 and the Contractor employed more 
than 40 full-time employees on a single working day during the previous 12 months in Minnesota or in 
the state where it has its principle place of business, then the Contractor must comply with the 
requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600. A Contractor covered 
by Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 because it employed more than 40 full-time employees in another state and 
does not have a certificate of compliance, must certify that it is in compliance with federal affirmative 
action requirements. 

15.2. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 requires the Contractor to have an affirmative action plan 
for the employment of minority persons, women, and qualified disabled individuals approved by the 
Minnesota Commissioner of Human Rights (“Commissioner”) as indicated by a certificate of compliance. 
The law addresses suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance and contract consequences in 
that event. A contract awarded without a certificate of compliance may be voided.  

15.3. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600.  



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 10 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

15.3.1. General. Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 implement Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. These rules 
include, but are not limited to, criteria for contents, approval, and implementation of affirmative 
action plans; procedures for issuing certificates of compliance and criteria for determining a 
contractor’s compliance status; procedures for addressing deficiencies, sanctions, and notice and 
hearing; annual compliance reports; procedures for compliance review; and contract 
consequences for non-compliance. The specific criteria for approval or rejection of an affirmative 
action plan are contained in various provisions of Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 including, 
but not limited to, parts 5000.3420-5000.3500 and 5000.3552-5000.3559.  

15.3.2. Disabled Workers. The Contractor must comply with the following affirmative action 
requirements for disabled workers:  

15.3.2.1. The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to 
take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat 
qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental 
disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

15.3.2.2. The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota 
Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 

15.3.2.3. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, 
actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with Minn. Stat. Section 
363A.36, and the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human 
Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act. 

15.3.2.4. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the commissioner of 
the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. Such notices must state the Contractor's 
obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in 
employment qualified disabled employees and applicants for employment, and the 
rights of applicants and employees. 

15.3.2.5. The Contractor must notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it 
has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the 
Contractor is bound by the terms of Minn. Stat. Section 363A.36, of the Minnesota 
Human Rights Act and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance 
in employment physically and mentally disabled persons. 

15.3.3. Consequences. The consequences for the Contractor’s failure to implement its affirmative action 
plan or make a good faith effort to do so include, but are not limited to, suspension or revocation of 
a certificate of compliance by the Commissioner, refusal by the Commissioner to approve 
subsequent plans, and termination of all or part of this contract by the Commissioner or the State. 

15.3.4. Certification. The Contractor hereby certifies that it is in compliance with the requirements of Minn. 
Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. Parts 5000.3400-5000.3600 and is aware of the consequences for 
noncompliance. 

16. Workers’ Compensation  

Each party will be responsible for its own employees for any workers compensation claims. This MPC, and any 
work order contracts issued hereunder, are not intended to constitute an interchange of government employees 
under Minn. Stat. §15.53. To the extent that this MPC, or any work order issued hereunder, is determined to be 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 11 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

subject to Minn. Stat. §15.53, such statute will control to the extent of any conflict between the contract and the 
statute.  

17. Publicity  

17.1. Publicity. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of a work order contract where the State is the 
Requesting Party must identify the State as the sponsoring agency and must not be released without prior 
written approval from the State’s Authorized Representative. For purposes of this provision, publicity 
includes notices, informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public 
notices prepared by or for the Local Government individually or jointly with others, or any 
subcontractors, with respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from a work 
order contract.  

17.2. Data Practices Act. Section 17.1 is not intended to override the Local Government’s responsibilities 
under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act. 

18. Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue 

Minnesota law, without regard to its choice-of-law provisions, governs this master contract and all work order 
contracts. Venue for all legal proceedings out of this master contract or any work order contracts, or the breach of 
any such contracts, must be in the appropriate state or federal court with competent jurisdiction in Ramsey 
County, Minnesota. 

19. Prompt Payment; Payment to Subcontractors 

The parties must make prompt payment of their obligations in accordance with applicable law. As required by 
Minn. Stat. § 16A.1245, when the Local Government lets a contract for work pursuant to any work order, the 
Local Government must require its contractor to pay all subcontractors, less any retainage, within 10 calendar 
days of the prime contractor's receipt of payment from the Local Government for undisputed services provided by 
the subcontractor(s) and must pay interest at the rate of one and one-half percent per month or any part of a month 
to the subcontractor(s) on any undisputed amount not paid on time to the subcontractor(s). 

20. Minn. Stat. § 181.59. The Local Government will comply with the provisions of Minn. Stat. § 181.59 which 
requires: Every contract for or on behalf of the state of Minnesota, or any county, city, town, township, school, 
school district, or any other district in the state, for materials, supplies, or construction shall contain provisions by 
which the Contractor agrees: (1) That, in the hiring of common or skilled labor for the performance of any work 
under any contract, or any subcontract, no contractor, material supplier, or vendor, shall, by reason of race, creed, 
or color, discriminate against the person or persons who are citizens of the United States or resident aliens who 
are qualified and available to perform the work to which the employment relates; (2) That no contractor, material 
supplier, or vendor, shall, in any manner, discriminate against, or intimidate, or prevent the employment of any 
person or persons identified in clause (1) of this section, or on being hired, prevent, or conspire to prevent, the 
person or persons from the performance of work under any contract on account of race, creed, or color; (3) That a 
violation of this section is a misdemeanor; and (4) That this contract may be canceled or terminated by the state, 
county, city, town, school board, or any other person authorized to grant the contracts for employment, and all 
money due, or to become due under the contract, may be forfeited for a second or any subsequent violation of the 
terms or conditions of this contract.  

21. Termination; Suspension 

21.1. Termination by the State for Convenience. The State or commissioner of Administration may cancel this 
MPC and any work order contracts at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days written notice to the 
Local Government. Upon termination, the Local Government and the State will be entitled to payment, 
determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

21.2. Termination by the Local Government for Convenience. The Local Government may cancel this MPC 
and any work order contracts at any time, with or without cause, upon 30 days written notice to the State. 



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 12 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

Upon termination, the Local Government and the State will be entitled to payment, determined on a pro 
rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed. 

21.3. Termination for Insufficient Funding. The State may immediately terminate or suspend this MPC and 
any work order contract if it does not obtain funding from the Minnesota legislature or other funding 
source; or if funding cannot be continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services 
covered here. Termination or suspension must be by written or fax notice to the Local Government. The 
State is not obligated to pay for any services that are provided after notice and effective date of 
termination or suspension. However, the Local Government will be entitled to payment, determined on a 
pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds are available. The State will 
not be assessed any penalty if the master contract or work order is terminated because of the decision of 
the Minnesota legislature or other funding source, not to appropriate funds. The State must provide the 
Local Government notice of the lack of funding within a reasonable time of the State’s receiving that 
notice. 

22. Data Disclosure 

Under Minn. Stat. §270C.65, subd. 3, and other applicable law, the Local Government consents to disclosure of 
its federal employer tax identification number, and/or Minnesota tax identification number, already provided to 
the State, to federal and state tax agencies and state personnel involved in the payment of state obligations. These 
identification numbers may be used in the enforcement of federal and state tax laws which could result in action 
requiring the Local Government to file state tax returns and pay delinquent state tax liabilities, if any.  

23. Defense of Claims and Lawsuits 

If any lawsuit or claim is filed by a third party (including but not limited to the Local Government’s contractors 
and subcontractors), arising out of trunk highway work performed pursuant to a valid work order issued under this 
MPC, the Local Government will, at the discretion of and upon the request of the State, tender the defense of such 
claims to the State or allow the State to participate in the defense of such claims. The Local Government will, 
however, be solely responsible for defending any lawsuit or claim, or any portion thereof, when the claim or cause 
of action asserted is based on its own acts or omissions in performing or supervising the work. The Local 
Government will not purport to represent the State in any litigation, settlement, or alternative dispute resolution 
process. The State will not be responsible for any judgment entered against the Local Government, and will not be 
bound by the terms of any settlement entered into by the Local Government except with the written approval of 
the Attorney General and the Commissioner of Transportation and pursuant to applicable law. 

24. Additional Provisions 

 

[The balance of this page has intentionally been left blank – signature page follows] 

  



  MnDOT Contract Number:  1028315 
 

Page 13 of 13 
 
CM Master Partnership Contract (CM Rev. 04/10/2017) 

 
 

 

  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT   COMMISSIONER OF TRANSPORTATION 

The Local Government certifies that the appropriate 
person(s) have executed the contract on behalf of the 
Local Government as required by applicable 
ordinance, resolution, or charter provision. 

   

   By:  

By:    (with delegated authority) 

Title:   Title Assistant Commissioner or 
Assistant Division Director 

Date:   Date:  

     

By:  
 

 
COMMISSIONER OF ADMINISTRATION 

As delegated to Materials Management Division 

Title   By:  

Date:   Date:   

     

 



Roseau County 
Request for Board Action 

 
 

Agenda Item #:   County Board Item 1 
(for office use only) 
Requested Board Date: May 23, 2017 Originating Department:  Coordinator 

Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda): 
Commissioner Committee Reports 

Presenter:  Commissioners 

Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion: 

☐< 5 minutes ☐ 5 minutes ☐ 10 minutes 

☐ 15 minutes ☒ 30 minutes ☐ >30 minutes 

Board Action Requested: 
Commissioners will present their Committee Reports. 
 

Background: 
Commissioner Phillipe and Commissioner Swanson’s Committee reports are attached. 
 

Supporting Documentation: ☒ Attached ☐ None 

Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting: 

☐ Delegations  ☐ Consent Agenda 

☐ Department Reports ☐ Committee Reports 

☒ County Board Items ☐ Other 
 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY: 

 

Board Action: 
 Approved as Requested:    
 Denied:    
 Tabled:    
 Other:    

Distribution/Filing Instructions:   

 



Roseau County Board 
May 2017 Meetings 
 
Glenda A. Phillipe 
District One 
 
April 27:  Warroad Parks and Rec – Warroad  
May 2: Operations – Roseau 
May 2:  COW – Roseau 
May 3:  LDS Area Agency on Aging - TRF 
May 8:  Warroad City Council – Warroad 
May 9:  Roseau County Board – Roseau 
May 9:  Rural Enterprise Business Grant – Roseau 
 
May 17:  Hazardous Waste Joint Powers – Roseau 
May 17:  Lake Township – Warroad 
May 18:  Warroad Parks and Rec – Warroad 
May 19:  Rural Business Enterprise Grant – Roseau 
May 22:  Warroad City Council – Warroad 
May 23:  County Board – Roseau 
 



JACK  SWANSON  COMMITTEE  REPORTS 
 
MAY 10, 2017 -   ROSEAU CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 

MAY 10, 2017 -   NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES COMMUNITY, 

ECONOMIC & WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE (TELECONFERENCE) 

MAY 11, 2017 -    STATEWIDE EMERGENCY COMMUNICATIONS BOARD FINANCE 

COMMITTEE;  approved Marshall County ARMER participation plan 

MAY 11, 2017 -    TEAM ‘EPIC’;  continued work on sector interviews 

MAY 15, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES TRANSPORTATION 

TASK FORCE;  radio interviews on state transportation funding 

MAY 16, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES TRANSPORTATION 

TASK FORCE;  more radio interviews w/ Ramsey Co. Commissioner Jim McDonough 

MAY 16, 2017 -    SOCIAL SERVICES BOARD 

MAY 16, 2017 -    HIGHWAY COMMITTEE;  proposed parcels for 2018 state land sale 

MAY 16, 2017 -    C G I 

MAY 17, 2017 -    NORTHWEST MINNESOTA HOUSING AND REDEVELOPMENT 

AUTHORITY (THIEF RIVER FALLS) 

MAY 18, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES FINANCE 

COMMITTEE;  2018 AMC Budget 

MAY 18, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES EXECUTIVE 

COMMITTEE 

MAY 18, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES FUTURES TASK 

FORCE 

MAY 19, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES FUTURES TASK 

FORCE 

MAY 19, 2017 -    ASSOCIATION OF MINNESOTA COUNTIES PAST PRESIDENTS 

ROUNDTABLE 

MAY 22, 2017 -    NW MINNESOTA TOWARD ZERO DEATHS COALITION;  w/ 

coordinator Holly Kostrzewski 

 


	5-23-17 County Board Agenda
	Consent 1 - May 9, 2017 Board Proceedings - RBA
	May 9, 2017 Board Proceedings

	Consent 2 - Social Worker Hire - RBA
	Consent 3 - MCCC Joint Powers Agreement - RBA
	MCCC Joint Powers Agreement

	Consent 4 - Master Partnership Contract - MnDOT - RBA
	MnDOT Master Contract Cover Letter 
	MnDOT Master Contract Resolution of Support
	MnDOT Master Partnership Contract

	County Board Item 1 - Commissioner Committee Reports - RBA
	Commissioner Phillipe's Report
	Commissioner Swanson's Report










[image: ]Roseau County

Request for Board Action





		Agenda Item #:   Consent 1 

(for office use only)



		Requested Board Date:

		May 9, 2017		Originating Department:  Coordinator’s Office



		Subject Title (as it will appear on the Agenda):

May 9, 2017 Board Proceedings

		Presenter:  Jeff Pelowski



		

		Estimated Amount of Time Needed for Discussion:

☒< 5 minutes	☐ 5 minutes	☐ 10 minutes

☐ 15 minutes	☐ 30 minutes	☐ >30 minutes



		Board Action Requested:

[bookmark: _GoBack]Review and approve the May 9, 2017 Regular Board Meeting Proceedings. 



		Background:

     





		Supporting Documentation:	☒ Attached	☐ None



		Agenda Classification for County Board Meeting:
☐ Delegations		☒ Consent Agenda

☐ Department Reports	☐ Committee Reports

☐ County Board Items	☐ Other





		

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY:

		



		Board Action:

	Approved as Requested:  	

	Denied:  	

	Tabled:  	

	Other:  	

		Distribution/Filing Instructions:  













image1.png



